## NOTICE OF MEETING

CITY COUNCIL

# CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING, REGENERATION & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

WEDNESDAY, 18 MARCH 2015 AT 1.00 PM

THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL

Telephone enquiries to Vicki Plytas 02392 834058 Email: vicki.plytas@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING, REGENERATION & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Councillor Luke Stubbs (Conservative)

### **Group Spokespersons**

Councillor Ben Dowling, Liberal Democrat Councillor Aiden Gray, Labour Councillor Steve Hastings, UK Independence Party

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are accepted.

### AGENDA

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 2 Declarations of Members' Interests
- 3 Lease of the Camber to Ben Ainslie Racing Limited (Pages 1 10)

The purpose of the report is to advise the Cabinet Member of the principal terms of the proposed lease to be entered into with Ben Ainslie Racing Ltd (BAR).

### **RECOMMENDED** that the Cabinet Member agrees

- (1) The principal terms for the lease to Ben Ainslie Racing Ltd (BAR) as set out in this report
- (2) The City Solicitor and the Director of Property be authorised to complete all legal documentation in order to give effect to the above recommendation
- 4 Preparations for Developing a UTC (University Technical College) in Portsmouth (Pages 11 16)

The purpose of the report is to seek approval for the disposal of the land where the Hilsea Youth Club is currently sited, to facilitate the building of the new University Technical College (UTC) for Portsmouth. The land will be disposed of via either a freehold transfer for no consideration or a 125 year lease at a peppercorn rent.

#### **RECOMMENDED**

- (1) That the Planning, Regeneration & Economic Development Portfolio Holder agrees that delegated approval be given to the Director of Property and City Solicitor to conclude either a freehold transfer or the grant of a long lease of the land currently forming Hilsea Youth Club shown cross hatched in black on the plan in Appendix 1 ("the Property") to help facilitate the building of the new UTC for Portsmouth.
- (2) That the disposal be to either the Salterns Academy Trust or the UTC Trust as outlined in the report.
- (3) That the City Solicitor be given delegated approval to complete the necessary documentation, subject to being satisfied as to terms and any relevant legal requirement.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue.



## Agenda Item 3

Agenda item:	
Agenda item:	

**Decision maker:** Planning, regeneration and economic development, 18<sup>th</sup> March

2015

Subject: Ben Ainslie Racing (BAR) - The Camber, Old Portsmouth

**Report by:** Owen Buckwell, Director of Property

Wards affected: St Thomas

Key decision (over £250k): No

### 1. Purpose of report:

1.1 The report is to advise the Cabinet Member of the principal terms of the proposed lease to be entered into with Ben Ainslie Racing Ltd (BAR).

#### 2. Recommendations:

- 2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet Member agrees:
- 2.1.1 The principal terms for the lease to Ben Ainslie Racing Ltd (BAR) as set out in this report
- 2.1.2 The City Solicitor and the Director of Property be authorised to complete all legal documentation in order to give effect to the above recommendation.

### 3. Background:

- 3.1 As reported to Planning, regeneration and economic development in June 2014 Ben Ainslie Racing Ltd (BAR) approached PCC with a view to locating a team base on the site in order to develop and build a boat for the next Americas Cup challenge in 2017; and if successful to use their best endeavours to host the subsequent race in the UK based in Portsmouth.
- 3.2 Following the June report, and the granting of planning consent for the BAR team base, the Council has relocated the existing tenants on the Camber providing vacant possession for BAR to construct their team base under licence, and continued negotiations with BAR regarding the proposed lease agreement.
- 3.3 Whilst the June report provided authority for the legal documentation to be completed as negotiations between the parties were in their infancy it was not possible to detail all the terms of the proposed agreement at the time. With negotiations now concluded and the principal terms being different from those as

at June this report sets out the agreed terms for consideration by the Cabinet Member.

### 3.4 Principal terms:

1.	Lease Areas	The property at The Camber, Sites 1 & 2, Old Portsmouth and shown edged red on the attached plan [Appendix 1], including all buildings constructed on those Sites, additions, improvements and services in place when the Lease is granted.
2	Term	The term is for 25 years with options for the tenant to renew several times for a term of 10 years, followed by 10 years, followed by 5 years (fifty years in total)
3	Rent and Consideration	The Tenant (at its own cost) will enter into an agreement to build a new boat building shed, of a design suitable to house a boat participating in The Americas Cup.  There will be a rent free period for the first ten years whilst the Property is used for the purpose of securing The Americas Cup.  In the event The Americas Cup ambition ceases in the first ten years then the rent free period will stop and rent for surfaced industrial land will become payable with immediate effect  In the tenth year, irrespective of the Americas Cup ambition, rent will become payable for the site and will be calculated as the greater of £110,000 per annum or the market rent for surfaced industrial land.
4	Rent Review	When a rent is charged, then that rent will be reviewed every fifth year thereafter. The review of rent will be upwards only.
5	Interest	Interest at a rate of 4 % above the base rate of the Co- operative Bank Plc will be charged if any sum due under the terms of the Lease remains unpaid for a period in excess of 14 days after the due date.
6	Outgoings	The Tenant shall be responsible for the payment of rates, taxes, gas, electricity and water charges or any other charges which may arise from the Lease or the Tenant's use of the Property.
7	Insurance	The Tenant shall insure the Property and their contents against fire, explosion, storm, lightning, tempest, flood,

		burst pipes, impact, aircraft and articles dropped therefore, riot and civil commotion up to the full cost of rebuilding or reinstatement. The Tenants shall arrange for their own contents and public liability insurance, as necessary. The Tenant will be under an obligation to reinstate the building in the event it is damaged / destroyed by an insured risk.
8	Repairs / Decoration	The Tenant shall keep the Property in good and tenantable repair and condition throughout the Term. The Landlord shall keep the sea wall surrounding the Property in repair and condition, and appropriate rights shall be granted to the Tenant to allow it to use/oversail this area and to gain access to the water.
		At the end of the Term, the Tenant is to yield up the Property with vacant possession in a state of repair and decoration in accordance with the condition required by the provisions of this Lease. Buildings to remain on the Property.
9:	User	The Tenant shall not use the Property or any part thereof for any purpose other than for: Site 1 - (a) During Americas Cup - boat development and construction, storage and ancillary maintenance work in relation to the Ben Ainslie Racing team, with the purpose of securing the Americas Cup; offices for 1851 Trust's use; ancillary PV cells in roof space (b) Should the Americas Cup ambition cease - light industrial on ground floor and offices above; ancillary PV cells in roof space. Site 2 - Car parking only with occasional use for events and event preparations
10	Alterations	The Tenant shall not make any alteration or additions to the Property or any part thereof, whether internal or external without the prior written consent of the Council (not to be unreasonably withheld) but internal non-structural alterations shall not require Landlord's consent. The Tenant shall pay the Council's reasonable costs in processing any such application for consent, whether or not the consent is actually granted
11	Assignment / subletting / mortgaging	During the America's Cup, the Tenant shall not assign, share or part with possession of any part of the Property. BAR want to be able to assign the whole Property to its Founding Investors during and after the America's Cup without landlord's consent. This proposal is under review, Group sharing shall be permitted without consent. After the America's Cup period, a more typical alienation clause shall apply to enable the Tenant to assign or underlet the

		whole or part of the Property in all cases with the Landlord's consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. However, before any assignment (other than to the Founding Shareholders) can take place, BAR must have given the Council the opportunity to buy the property back.  The Tenant shall not underlet the Property (Site 2) at any time.  The Tenant shall not underlet the Property (Site 1) except (a) the part consisting of the roof space of the Tenant's building for solar panels, the lease to exclude the security of tenure provisions (Landlord and Tenant Act, Part II) and (b) to the 1851 Trust for use in connection with its own charitable objects (youth sailing activities), the lease to be excluded from the above security of tenure provisions.  BAR will be allowed to charge the Property both in favour of any its individual 'Founding Investors' and HSBC Bank plc (or similar bank).
12	Re-entry	The Council reserves the right to re-enter the Property and forfeit the Lease whenever:  a) any payment due under the terms of the Lease remain unpaid for a period in excess of 14 days after the due date whether or not it has formally been demanded. b) the Tenant has not complied with any of the material terms of the Lease.  The Tenant becomes insolvent or declared bankrupt. The forfeiture of the Lease will not cancel any outstanding obligations of the Tenant.
13	Host City Nomination	If Ben Ainslie Racing wins the Americas Cup, it shall use all reasonable endeavours to nominate Portsmouth as the host city for any event for which they are entitled to choose the location of as a result of victors rights, provided that it considers (acting reasonably) that such a nomination is a commercially, practically and economically viable option (such considerations to include but are not limited to whether Portsmouth City Council fully supports the nomination and whether the required space is made available to host the America's Cup and any associated events) and provided that there are no reasons out of Ben Ainslie Racing's control which mean that it has to hold the event in another location.
14	Pre-emption	The Landlord has the right of first refusal for buy-back of the lease if and when either (a) the America's Cup Project

	is discontinued or (b) the Tenant defaults under the terms of the charges referred to in term 11 (above).

#### 4. Reasons for recommendations

- 4.1 The principal terms set out in this report are recommended. On balance, noting the benefits to the Council (including the contingent and wide-ranging economic benefits accruing to various operations of the Council, and the re-entry terms, which allow the Council the benefit of a highly developed facility) these terms are considered to be the best terms that can reasonably be agreed with BAR in order to facilitate the Americas cup challenge base as described within this report and the previous report on this subject.
- 4.2 The money being expended by BAR on constructing their team base and the economic impact this development and subsequent activity will have on the local economy have been taken into account when considering the proposed terms.
- 4.3 The City Council is not investing in the construction of the building, and is providing land only for the development, and as such the terms set out above are recommended to be accepted.

### 5. Equality impact assessment (EIA)

5.1 This decision has been screened for impact on groups with protected characteristics, as that term is defined under the Equalities Act 20120, and no adverse impact requiring mitigation measures has been indicated.

### 6. City Solicitor comments

- 6.1 The Council in a leasehold disposal of 7 years or more such as this, must secure the best consideration that can reasonably be obtained, or rely on the consent of the secretary of state. As no express consent has been obtained, the Council may rely on the General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 order (Circular 06/03) in instances where the promotion of economic, social, or environmental well-being is anticipated, in relation to undervalues up to £2,000.000. In these instances, no express consent is required. Circular 06/03 provides a technical appendix by which the valuation is conducted.
- 6.2 All disposals must comply with the European Commission's State Aid rules. Provided the Corporate Assets department considers that the value is at a market rate then the disposal does not constitute State Aid.

#### 7. Head of Finance's comments

- 7.1 The proposed lease terms state that BAR will not be required to pay a rent while the site is being used to compete in the Americas Cup. Whilst this results in a net reduction in rental income from the Camber site in the short term, it is anticipated that the Property Portfolio will continue to operate within its existing cash limit. In addition, the considerations of the Council's valuer as to the wider commercial benefits and returns of the proposed arrangements, although not quantified, do demonstrate an economic benefit compared to the status quo.
- 7.2 As stated within the report, in the event that the America's Cup ambition ceases, and in any event after ten years the rent free period will stop and the higher of £110,000 or open market rent for surfaced industrial land will become payable with immediate effect, resulting in an increase in rental income from the site overall, compared to the status quo.
- 7.3 It should be noted that the property built by BAR on the Camber will return to PCC ownership upon lease expiry for future commercial/development use.

Signed by: Owen Buckwell,	

### Appendices:

Appendix 1 - Site Plan

### **Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972**

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document	Location
13 <sup>th</sup> June 2014 - PRED report - East St and Broad St	http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieList Documents.aspx?Cld=158&Mld=2838&Ver=4

The recommendation(s) set out above verificated by	vere approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ on
,	
Signed by Cllr Luke Stubbs, Executive No Development	Member for Planning, Regeneration and Economic



Key:
Planning Application Boundary Page 9 Ν FURZEHALL FARM, WICKHAM ROAD FAREHAM, HAMPSHIRE, PO16 7JH 1. Survey License Number: 100022432 Site Location Plan A4 T: 01329 283 225 F: 01329 237 004 E: EMAIL@HGP-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK W: WWW.HGP-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK Ben Ainslie Racing Scale @ A4: 1:2500 14.001.101 REVISIONS

This page is intentionally left blank

## Agenda Item 4



Agenda item:	
--------------	--

**Title of meeting:** Planning, Regeneration & Economic Development Decision

**Making Meeting** 

Date of meeting: 18 March 2015

**Subject:** Preparations for developing a UTC in Portsmouth

**Report From:** The Chief Executive

**Report by:** Paddy May, Corporate Strategy Manager

Wards affected: All

**Key decision**: No

Full Council decision: No

### 1. Purpose of report

1.1. To seek approval for the disposal of the land where the Hilsea Youth Club is currently sited, to facilitate the building of the new University Technical College (UTC) for Portsmouth. The land will be disposed of via either a freehold transfer for no consideration or a 125 year lease at a peppercorn rent.

### 2. Recommendations

- 2.1. That the Planning, Regeneration & Economic Development Portfolio Holder agrees that delegated approval be given to the Director of Property and City Solicitor to conclude either a freehold transfer or the grant of a long lease of the land currently forming Hilsea Youth Club shown cross hatched in black on the plan in Appendix 1 ("the Property") to help facilitate the building of the new UTC for Portsmouth.
- 2.2. That the disposal be to either the Salterns Academy Trust or the UTC Trust as outlined in the report.
- 2.3. That the City Solicitor be given delegated approval to complete the necessary documentation, subject to being satisfied as to terms and any relevant legal requirement.

### 3. Background

3.1. UTCs are schools that provide technical education for young people aged 14-19. UTCs are non-selective and engage employers in developing the curriculum and involve employers in providing technical opportunities for young people as part of their learning. On 12<sup>th</sup> March, Portsmouth heard that their application for developing a UTC was successful. The UTC should help ensure that young people have the technical skills needed for a thriving and growing economy.



- 3.2. Portsmouth City Council was a key part of a bidding process that proposed the development of a UTC in Portsmouth. The overall bid was led by the University of Portsmouth with significant project support provided by the Royal Navy and with the education advice provided by the Salterns Academy Trust. We have just heard that our proposal to develop a UTC has been approved nationally.
- 3.3. As part of the development of a UTC, a separate trust, UTC Portsmouth, has been set up and Portsmouth City Council, along with the Salterns Academy Trust, the Royal Navy and the University of Portsmouth are the founding members of this trust. It is proposed that the UTC will be built alongside the existing City of Portsmouth Boys School site (to be Trafalgar School). Portsmouth City Council owns a small parcel of land (currently the site of the Hilsea Youth Club shown crossed in black on the plan in Appendix 1) and this land will be needed for the development of the UTC.

### 4. Proposed transfer of land

- 4.1 The Education Funding Agency (EFA) will be responsible for securing the land to enable the UTC to be built and will also be funding the build. The EFA have a responsibility to ensure that value for money is maximised. As part of this it is a requirement, and normal practice, that any land provided by either a local authority or a school is provided at no cost. It is therefore proposed that the Council transfers the land currently occupied by the Hilsea Youth Club at no cost to help facilitate the development of the UTC. Discussions have started with the existing users of the Hilsea Youth Club to help ensure that they can access alternative provision.
- 4.2 Because it has only just been announced that our bid to develop a UTC has been successful, it has not been possible to enter into any discussions with the EFA about this transfer. This means that it is not yet clear whether we will be required to transfer the freehold or grant a 125 year lease at a peppercorn rent. It is also not clear whether the transfer / lease will be direct to UTC Portsmouth or to the Salterns Academy Trust who will be taking over ownership of the school site from the 1<sup>st</sup> of April as part of the academy transfer. We expect the Salterns Academy Trust will transfer their land for the UTC to the UTC Trust.
- 4.3 There is a possibility that the EFA may decide that the proposed site for the UTC does not provide maximum value for money and may look to build the UTC at a different location. As part of the bidding process there was a requirement to look at alternative sites and this process showed that the proposed site was the best option with good sub-regional transport links and an appropriate amount of space for a UTC. However if the EFA does decide that the site is not the best option it will be important that we enable the land to transfer back to the Council. This will be negotiated as part of the land transfer process and provision made in the documentation.

### 5. Reasons for recommendations

5.1 Portsmouth City Council is fully supportive of the proposed UTC for Portsmouth and is one of the founding members of the UTC Trust. The UTC will enhance the educational opportunities available to young people within Portsmouth and the wider sub-region. It will also help ensure that our businesses are able to recruit work ready young people with the appropriate technical skills. This is turn will



help ensure that our economy is able to grow and thrive. To help facilitate this new opportunity for Portsmouth, it is important that the City Council allows the transfer of the current Hilsea Youth Club site at below market value. With discussions still to happen with the EFA it is proposed that the Director of Property be given delegated authority to finalise the details.

### 6. Equality impact assessment (EIA)

6.1 A preliminary EIA has been completed, indicating that there is no requirement for a full EIA at this stage.

### 7. City Solicitor comments

- 7.1 Under s123 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Council may dispose of any land in any manner they wish provided that it must be for the best consideration that can reasonably be obtained. If the disposal is not for the best consideration obtainable then the consent of the Secretary of State will be required.
- 7.2 However, Secretary of State consent to the disposal would not be required where the Local Authority considered that the purpose for which the land is to be disposed of is likely to contribute to the achievement of any one or more of the following objects in respect of the whole of any part of its area or of all or any person resident or present in its area:
  - (i) the promotion or improvement of economic well being;
  - (ii) the promotion or improvement of social well being;
  - (iii) the promotion or improvement of environmental well being.
- 7.3 In addition, in all cases, disposal at less than best consideration is subject to the condition that the undervalue does not exceed £2,000,000. We are advised by Corporate Assets that the property is worth approximately £72,000 based on its existing community use (or £82,000 based on a commercial site value) and so is well below this threshold.
- 7.4 All disposals must comply with the European Commission's State Aid rules. When disposing of land at less than best consideration the Council is providing a subsidy to the occupier of the land. In such cases the Council must ensure that the nature and the amount of the subsidy complies with the State Aid rules. .

### 8. Head of finance's comments

- 8.1 The recommendations within this report propose that the Hilsea Youth Club building be disposed of to the Salterns Academy Trust or the UTC Trust, on either a long lease of 125 years on a peppercorn rent, or through a freehold disposal at nil value.
- 8.2 The value of the site to be disposed of has been valued at approximately £72,000, based on its existing community use, however as a development site the value would be greater (approximately £82,000). As a result it should be acknowledged that the recommendations within this report do not deliver the best financial consideration for the site.

Signed by: David Williams, Chief Executive



### Appendices:

Appendix 1 - Map showing proposed site to transfer

### **Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972**

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material extent by the author in preparing this report:

material extent by the author in preparing this report:		
Title of document	Location	
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ rejected by on		
Signed by: Name and Title		



### **Appendix 1**

### Site of City of Portsmouth Boys School Site with PCC land shown as hatched



